
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, July 19, 2016, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Suzanne VanOrman, President

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) VanOrman
II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest VanOrman
III. Consent agenda (ACTION) VanOrman
IV. Open forum for the general public VanOrman
V. Reports 

i. Friends update VanOrman
ii. Foundation update Snyder
iii. May and June financial statements Nielsen
iv. Director's report Fox/Nielsen

VI. Previous business
VII. New business

i. Officer elections (ACTION) VanOrman
ii. Review of strategic goals Fox
iii. Appointing agents of record (ACTION) Snyder
iv. Establishing regular meeting time (ACTION) Snyder
v. Legal services contract (ACTION) Snyder
vi. Director hiring/contract for Rachael Fox Nielsen
vii. Board Governance Policy revision (ACTION) Nielsen

VIII.Agenda items for next meeting Snyder
IX. Adjournment Snyder

_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive Session may be 
held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie Gaulke 
Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language interpretation for the hearing 
impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda, Supplementary Info

Tuesday, July 19, 2016, 7.00p
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room

502 State St, Hood River
Suzanne VanOrman, President

Notes prepared by Library Director Buzzy Nielsen

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) VanOrman
II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest VanOrman
III. Consent agenda (ACTION) VanOrman
Attachments:

• III.a. Minutes of June 21, 2016, regular meeting
• III.b. Minutes of July 9, 2016, special meeting (Director candidates meet & greet)

IV. Open forum for the general public VanOrman
V. Reports 

i. Friends update VanOrman
The Friends of Library are on hiatus for the summer. However, Plays for Nonprofits is doing two 
productions this summer that benefit the Friends of the Library, in addition to SMART and CASA:

• Much Ado About Nothing at Stonehedge Gardens: ran July 7,8, 10, and 14. Final showing is on 
July 15 at 7.00p.

• Oklahoma! at Hood River Middle School auditorium: August 5, 6, 12, 13, 19, and 20. Tickets are 
available at https://www.showtix4u.com/. Search for events happening in Hood River.

ii. Foundation update Snyder
The Library Foundation also is on break for the summer. However, their endowment campaign netted 
over $26,000 in donations. this amount will be matched 100% by an anonymous donor to the Gorge 
Community Foundation, where the Library Foundation's endowment resides. This brings the 
endowment total to over $85,000.

iii. May and June financial statements Nielsen
Attachments:

• V.iii.a. May 2016 financial statements

The June financial statements were unavailable at the time the meeting packet was distributed.

According to the year-end tax collection report from Hood River County, the library district received 
$785,395.98 in current year taxes and $23,505.75 in previous years' taxes, which are 2.7% and 56.7% 
higher respectively than what was budgeted.



iv. Director's report Fox/Nielsen
Administration

• As of July 1, the Hood River Library, Georgiana Smith Memorial Gardens, and related 
properties belong to the library district. The County Board of Commissioners agreed to the 
property transfer at their regular meeting in June. It may behoove the Board to send each of 
the Commissioners a thank you note. They have been very supportive of the district 
throughout our first five years by allowing us to use their courier vehicles the first few years, 
hosting our telephone system (which they continue to do), making staff available for advice on 
budget & finance, human resources, and information technology, giving us an extremely low 
annual rent for Hood River Library, doing building and yard maintenance, and more.

• As a recent Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO) newsletter noted, recent court 
cases have raised questions about the recreational immunity often provided to public agencies. 
This immunity extends to agencies offering property for recreation without charge, such as the
Georgiana Smith Memorial Gardens. The judge in the case determined that, while the agency 
itself is immune, employees are not. Since agencies are required to indemnify their employees, 
this essentially makes and end-run around the agency immunity. Our legal counsel, Jeff Baker, 
dos not think this is a large cause of worry for us, given that most of our work is done by 
contractors. However, SDAO mentioned that they'd try to have this issue addressed in the 
next legislative session.

Facilities
• Walker's Landscape Maintenance installed river rock in the northeast corner of the Hood 

River Library, between the library and the Hood River Jewelers and Oak Street Pub buildings. 
This work will help prevent growth of invasive species. A fence will be installed in the area as 
well to discourage use.

• The problematic maple tree in the southwest corner of the Gardens, near the Stoltz Vineyards 
building, was removed in early July without incident. We have received no comments about it. I 
am working on finding someone to grind/move the stump so that the Stoltz's wall can be 
rebuilt.

• We are still awaiting a replacement compressor for our rooftop air handling unit at Hood 
River Library. Climate control nonetheless has been behaving admirably all things considered.

Personnel
• Mo Burford, a familiar face from Dog River Coffee, is the library district newest Public Service 

Clerk. He began in early August.
• Fox and I anticipate that we'll have the posting for the Assistant Director position out by the 

end of this week.
• We had an extremely strong applicant pool for the Teen Services Librarian position. We 

interviewed four individuals and currently are discussing making an offer.
• Our previous Teen Services Assistant Harley Judd has his last day on June 25. We bid him a fond

farewell and much luck with his photography business.
• Cataloging Specialist Anna Lim will be going on a yearlong leave of absence starting in August. 

Public Service Clerk Jenny Ouzounian and part-time Cataloging Specialist Sarah Samuels will be
filling in for Anna in her absence.

Page 2



Programs and services
• The District's 5th birthday party on July 1 was a huge success. We estimate that about 350 

people came out to enjoy the event. At the same time, there was a reception for the Before I 
Die art piece that drew around 25 people.

Statistics
• Monthly

◦ June circulation of District-owned items at District locations increased 1.5% over last June.
◦ An incomplete count of June program involvement shows a 70.1% increase over last June.

• Annual
◦ 2015-16 annual circulation increased 6.7% over 2014-15.
◦ A incomplete count of 2015-16 program involvement shows a 53.5% increase over 

2014-15.
◦ Library2Go use increase 15.1% over last year. Use of TumbleBooks, our kids e-book 

services, remained flat, although over 36,000 books were viewed on the platform.
◦ Use of District-owned computers continues to drop, with an approximately 10% decline 

over last year. This likely is due to increased wireless use, which we currently do not count.
◦ The number of patrons using their cards in the last year increased 6.3% over last year.

VI. Previous business
VII. New business

i. Officer elections (ACTION) VanOrman
Annually, the Board elects a President and Vice-President, as delineated in the Board Governance 
Policy. At the June meeting, Snyder agreed to be nominated as President for 2016-17, and Schoppert 
agreed to be nominated as Vice-President. Further nominations can be taken from the floor. Successful 
candidates require a majority vote in favor. The bank signature card will need to be changed following 
the vote.

ii. Review of strategic goals Nielsen
Attachments:

• VII.ii.a Strategic Goals, 2016-21
• VII.ii.b Implementation plan for Strategic Goals

This is the first fiscal year for the district's new set of strategic goals, as established following an 
extensive public process that happened in the winter and spring of this year. This agenda item is an 
opportunity to discuss first steps in achieving these goals. I've delineated some actions and 
considerations for the established goals.

1. Create a stable and permanent presence in Odell.
• Evaluate effectiveness of current bus pilot and determine next steps.

◦ Current attendance on the bus has been spotty, although the last Saturday there were 
eight people who used it. Staff are continuing finding new ways to promote it, including  
the school district using their robo-call system to advertise. Staff are considering 
focusing bus efforts during the summer rather than throughout the year.    

• Develop a service plan and explore collaboration with prospective partners.

Page 3



◦ Outreach Specialist Patty Lara-Martinez likely will take point on this service plan. 
• Expand adult literacy and ESL opportunities for Spanish speakers.

◦ Staff already are working on improving ESL and early literacy collections for Spanish 
speakers. Pronunciator, our online language-learning database, also has strong ESL 
components that could be promoted.

2. Expand services to tweens and teens.
• Facilitate creative learning opportunities and provide a venue (at the library and/or online) 

for them to showcase their work.
• Modify teen space to address their needs.  
• Revitalize the teen advisory group.
• Improve outreach to teens.

◦ We received a very strong set of candidates for Teen Services Librarian. Staff have 
interviewed finalists and are in process of making an offer. This new staff member will 
be the key individual tackling this goal.

◦ Children's staff will work with the new Teen Services Librarian on serving tweens as 
well. The library already offers programming that attracts tweens but that has not been 
specifically marketed to them.

3. Expand outreach activities to continue to grow the library’s active users. 
• Connect with diverse audiences (and create connections between diverse communities) 

with large scale community events.
◦ The District's 5th birthday party was very successful and drew a large, diverse audience. 

Summer Reading Program events have been focusing on drawing large, diverse 
audiences around the County, especially through performers. Lara-Martinez's Día de los
Niños event in April drew hundreds of people of diverse backgrounds as well.

• Develop collections, services and programs targeted to nonusers.
◦ The library has several under-utilized electronic resources that may be a way to reach 

out to some non-users. These included our language-learning, downloadable media, auto
repair, and test prep resources.

◦ Fox has been increasingly focusing adult programming on active, hands-on programming
such as weaving and sewing. Such programs have proven popular and could involve 
people on the library who otherwise wouldn't have been.

• Reach out to vulnerable populations (including the homebound and homeless) through 
ongoing staff outreach.
◦ Fox's efforts reaching out to senior populations have been increasingly successful, as 

people get used to her presence. With Fox advancing to be Library Director, expansion 
of this service likely will wait until the a new Assistant Director begins.

◦ Lara-Martinez's work reaching out to Latinos continues to be hugely successful and a 
model for other libraries.

4. Increase library awareness throughout the county.  
• Expand alternative ways of promoting library news (including targeted and word of mouth 

marketing) to increase participation and attendance.
◦ Staff are working on a marketing plan, which hopefully should be implemented this fall. 

Page 4



it also will cover branding.
• Implement consistent branding to highlight all library sponsored events and activities.

◦ District logo banners are more common sights at outreach activities now, including in 
upcoming Movies in the Park events in Odell.

• Effectively communicate the positive impact of the library district and develop a plan for 
long-term funding sustainability.

5. Continue to develop the library as a cultural and educational hub for people of all ages and 
backgrounds.
• Provide access to diverse resources to meet the community’s diverse needs.  
• Offer literary events, musical concerts and other expressions of community creativity.

◦ As noted above, staff already are working on delivering such programming, including 
concerts.  

• Offer access to current and relevant technology.
• Continue to strengthen ongoing partnerships with other service providers, businesses, 

nonprofits  and educational institutions.  
• Ensure that the Friends of the Library and the Library Foundation continue to thrive as 

library support organizations.
• Explore options for maximizing the library’s open hours.

iii. Appointing agents of record (ACTION) Snyder
Attachments:

• VII.iii. Resolution 2016-17.01, establishing agents of record

The District must appoint its insurance agents of record. We have two agents. Columbia River 
Insurance assists the district with general liability and property insurance, which we currently get 
through Special Districts Association of Oregon. BCI Group assists us with employee benefits such as 
health insurance and retirement, which we currently get through PacificSource (medical and vision 
insurance), Guardian Life Insurance Company (dental insurance), and T. Rowe Price (403(b) retirement 
plan). Both agents have been very helpful. The attached resolution affirms these companies as our 
agents of record for the coming year.

iv. Establishing regular meeting time (ACTION) Snyder
Attachments:

• VII.iv. Resolution 2016-17.02, establishing regular meeting time

The Board's regular meeting time, date, and location needs to be established annually. At the June 
regular meeting, Board members agreed that the third Tuesday from 7.00-9.00p was a good time for 
regular monthly meetings.

v. Legal services contract (ACTION) Snyder
Attachments:

• VII.v. Resolution 2016-17.03, renewing legal services contract

Our legal contract with Annala, Carey, Baker, Thompson, & VanKoten, P.C., for legal services expired in 
January 2015. Attached is a resolution renewing our legal services contract. The payable rate is 

Page 5



$125/hour. Baker's services have been invaluable, and he has also been very easy with to work with.

vi. Director hiring/contract for Rachael Fox Nielsen
Attachments:

• Vii.vi. Draft Library Director contract for Rachael Fox

I completed discussions with Assistant Director Rachael Fox about offering her the Library Director 
position. She agreed to the terms the Board offered, including requiring completion of the Certified 
Public Library Administrator (CPLA) program at the District's expense. The Board now needs to 
formally offer Fox the position and approve the attached contract. The contract reflects changes the 
Board discussed in previous meetings. The CPLA requirement can be found in section E Continuing 
Education. District legal counsel Jeff Baker approves of this provision as worded.

vii. Board Governance Policy revision (ACTION) Nielsen
Attachments:

• VII.vii.a. Proposed amendment to Board Governance Policy
• VII.vii.b. Resolution 2016-17.04, amending Board Governance Policy

During the interviews for Library Director candidates, the Board accidentally ran afoul of our Board 
Governance Policy. Due to unforeseen circumstances, Vaivoda and VanOrman had to call in via phone. 
However, our policy states as such:

“Virtual participation:
Except for hearings on quasi-judicial matters and executive sessions, members may participate 
in meetings via teleconference, videoconference, web conference, or other technologies 
allowing synchronous communication among members. Notice and opportunity for public 
access shall be provided when meetings are conducted by electronic means. Notices shall be 
made using the same requirements as in-person meetings.”

I checked the Oregon Public Meetings Manual and did not find any explicit provision forbidding 
remote participation in executive sessions. However, I understand the concern for ensuring that 
unauthorized individuals don't overhear executive sessions. Therefore, I propose the attached revision 
to give the Board more flexibility in the future.

I am checking with legal counsel on this provision.

VIII.Agenda items for next meeting Snyder
IX. Adjournment Snyder

Page 6



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, June 21, 2016, 7.00p

Jeanne Marie Gaulke Community Meeting Room
502 State St, Hood River

Suzanne VanOrman, President
Minutes prepared by Library Director Buzzy Nielsen

Present: Buzzy Nielsen (staff), John Schoppert, Sara Snyder, Alexis Vaivoda, Suzanne VanOrman

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) VanOrman
President VanOrman called the meeting to order at 7.00p. Sheppard was on vacation. Schoppert 
moved to approve the agenda as presented. Vaivoda seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest VanOrman
None stated.

III. Consent agenda (ACTION) VanOrman
i. Minutes from May 17 meeting
ii. Cascade Locks Library lease agreement with City

Snyder moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Schoppert seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously.

IV. Open forum for the general public VanOrman
No public present.

V. Reports 
i. Friends update VanOrman

There was nothing additional to report aside from the written notes.

ii. Foundation update Snyder
There was nothing additional to report aside from the written notes.

iii. April and May financial statements Nielsen
The May financial statements were unavailable at the time of the meeting. The Board reviewed the 
April 2016 financial statements and had no questions.

iv. Director's report Nielsen
There was nothing additional to report aside from the written notes.

VI. Previous business
i. Director search update Nielsen

On June 21, the hiring committee interviewed five candidates for the Library Director position and 
narrowed the field down to three:



• Diane Adams, Director, International Falls Public Library, International Falls, MN
• Rachael Fox, Assistant Director, Hood River County Library District, Hood River, OR
• Emily Klonicki, Director, Ella Johnson Memorial Public Library District, Hampshire, IL

The hiring committee feels all three candidates are strong and have diverse strengths and weaknesses.

The Board discussed logistics for the final round interviews and decided that all candidates will be 
interviewed on Saturday, July 9. The interview process will involve a Board interview, meeting with staff,
a county tour for the out-of-area candidates, and a public meet & greet/presentation. A Board meeting 
to discuss the interviews will be held on Sunday, July 10. The Board reviewed and narrowed down the 
proposed final round interview questions.

ii. IGA with Mid-Columbia Council of Governments (ACTION) Nielsen
The Board discussed the proposed intergovernmental agreement with Mid-Columbia Council of 
Governments to locate their employment services at Hood River Library. The Board agreed with the 
draft proposal by added a provision in the “Termination” section stating as follows: “Termination with 
notice: Either party may cancel this lease at any time with 60 days written notice to the other party.” 
Snyder moved to approve the IGA as amended. Schoppert seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

VII. New business
i. 2016-17 budget approval (ACTION) VanOrman

I. Budget hearing VanOrman
President VanOrman opened the budget hearing at 8.07p. She closed it at 8.07p, as no public were 
present. Snyder moved to approve Resolution 2015-16.11, adopting the budget, making appropriations,
imposing taxes, and categorizing taxes. Vaivoda seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

ii. Approval of recurring payments for 2016-17 (ACTION) Nielsen
Snyder moved to approve Resolution 2015-16.12, approving online and recurring payments for the 
2016-17 fiscal year. Schoppert seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

iii. Discussion of 2016-17 President and Vice-President positions VanOrman
VanOrman stated that she would not run for President again. Snyder agreed to run for President. 
Schoppert for Vice-President. With a new director coming in, this President likely will have to spend 
more time conversing with the director than currently. New signature cards will be required when the
officers are elected. Snyder, Vaivoda, and VanOrman all stated that they would not be running for 
reelection in May, when their terms expire.

iv. Discussion of 2016-17 regular meeting time VanOrman
The Board discussed possible regular meeting times for next fiscal year and determined that the 
current day/time/location of the third Tuesday of the month in the Hood River Library meeting room 
at 7.00p should continue.

v. Library Director contract addendum renewal (ACTION) VanOrman
Snyder moved to approve the addendum to Nielsen's 2015-16 contract, extending through July 2016. 
Schoppert seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

Page 2



vi. Hood River property transfer agreement (ACTION) Nielsen
Snyder moved to approve the bill of sale and special warranty deed from Hood River County, 
transferring the Hood River Library, Georgiana Smith Memorial Gardens, and associated properties to
the library district. Vaivoda seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

VIII.Agenda items for next meeting, July 19, 2016 VanOrman
• Review of strategic goals
• Board officer elections
• Appointing agents of record
• Resolution establishing regular meeting time
• Legal services contract renewal

The Board discussed who would serve as liaisons to the Friends of the Library and Library 
Foundation. VanOrman agreed to continue serving as liaison to the Friends will be friends liaison. John 
volunteered to be the Foundation liaison.

IX. Adjournment VanOrman
The meeting adjourned at 8.29p

Page 3



Board of Directors
Special Meeting Minutes

Saturday, July 9, 2016, 7.00-9.00p
Riverside Community Church

317 State St, Hood River
Suzanne VanOrman, President

Minutes prepared by Library Director Buzzy Nielsen

Present: Buzzy Nielsen (staff), John Schoppert, Jean Sheppard, Sara Snyder

Board members attended the public meet and greet for three finalists for the Library Director 
position at the District: Diane Adams of International Falls, MN, Rachael Fox of Hood River, OR, and 
Emily Klonicki of Hampshire, IL. The event began at 7.00p. Members of the public had an opportunity 
to meet and talk with each of the candidates. At 7.25p, each candidate gave a short presentation to the
public. The event ended at 8.30p. Approximately forty people attended.












































































